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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone, and welcome. My name is Council Member

          4  Erik Martin Dilan. I'm the Chair of the City

          5  Council's Housing and Buildings Committee and I'd

          6  like to thank you all for attending today's hearing

          7  on two matters before the Committee, and since they

          8  are somewhat unrelated, we're going to deal with

          9  them separately.

         10                 First, we're going to deal with the

         11  New York City Electrical Code, and second, we'll be

         12  dealing with Intro. 426, which makes changes to the

         13  residential sprinkler system.

         14                 The Council is concerned about

         15  keeping the Electrical Code updated and current, and

         16  I guess the pun is intended, about easing

         17  residential, and we're also concerned about easing

         18  residential sprinkler system inspections from the

         19  Fire Department and the Department of Housing

         20  Preservation and Development. And it should ease

         21  some restrictions on owners as well, while

         22  protecting the lives of residents and tenants due to

         23  fires, so we'll stick with 425 from the outset.

         24                 In an effort to facilitate everyone's

         25  understanding of these two bills, I'll provide a
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          2  brief summation of what each bill purports to do,

          3  and I'll stick with only 425 at this time, and then

          4  do a quick summary of Intro. 426 as we deal with

          5  that as the proceedings go on.

          6                 Intro. 425 would update the

          7  Electrical Code by adopting the 2005 version of the

          8  National Electrical Code or NEC, along with some of

          9  the New York City specific amendments.

         10                 The Council first adopted the 1999

         11  version of the National Electrical Code, or NEC, as

         12  Local Law 64 in 2001. At that time, since the

         13  Electrical Code had not been significantly advised

         14  in several decades, Local Law 64 provided for

         15  specific updates to the Code and mandated the review

         16  of each new version of the NEC, which is published

         17  approximately every three years.

         18                 The Electrical Code has since been

         19  updated several times, the first law, based on the

         20  NEC in 2001, currently before this Committee, the

         21  measure to adopt the 2005 NEC, along with

         22  amendments, Intro. 420 would make several important

         23  technical and administrative changes, administrative

         24  upgrades to the Electrical Code.

         25                 The proposed technical amendments
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          2  include maintaining the current requirement for

          3  artful circuit interrupters, and deleting the

          4  National Electrical Code time limits for its

          5  applicability, adding requirements for outlets on

          6  balconies and decks and porches, prohibiting the use

          7  of metal clad cable service conductors, allowing the

          8  use of rigid non-metallic conduit in residential

          9  dwellings, not exceeding three floors, prohibiting

         10  the use of electrical metallic tubing in wet

         11  locations, prohibiting the use of flexible

         12  non-metallic conduits in hazardous conditions, and

         13  requiring solar photovoltaic systems to be tested as

         14  complete assemblies as opposed to nearly their

         15  individual parts.

         16                 And, finally, classifying all legally

         17  required standby systems as emergency systems.

         18                 The proposed administrative principle

         19  amendments to the Code include setting a one-year

         20  deadline for applicants for a masters electricians

         21  license, to submit his or her license application

         22  after passing the license examination. It would

         23  require all licensed applicants to provide proof of

         24  insurance coverage, allowing digital signatures in

         25  seal imprints for documents submitted to the
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          2  Department of Buildings electronically. It would

          3  broaden the role of the Electrical License Board to

          4  cover it, advising the Commissioner regarding

          5  allegations of illegal practices by licensees, and

          6  other responsibilities through rule-making and

          7  addressing administrative issues relating to the

          8  death of licensees.

          9                 It would change the expiration date

         10  of licenses as to stager the time and enlarging the

         11  period for -- and would also enlarge the period of

         12  late renewals from 30 days to 90 days.

         13                 It would require the closing of open

         14  violations before renewal of licenses and increasing

         15  penalties for infractions.

         16                 It would require the licensees to

         17  cooperation with investigations. It would liberalize

         18  owner authorization for paperwork requirements,

         19  extend permits to be effective for three years, and

         20  finally, it would eliminate the time limitation for

         21  Council legislative action.

         22                 The Committee is interested in

         23  learning about the particulars of each proposed

         24  adopted change, including how the changes

         25  specifically relate to life in New York City, as
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          2  well as the operations of various agencies and

          3  workforce.

          4                 The Committee expects to hear

          5  testimony from the Department of Buildings, various

          6  professionals in electrical or related fields, and

          7  concerned members of the public.

          8                 Before I get to the Department of

          9  Buildings's testimony, I'd like to take this time to

         10  introduce the members of the Committee that are

         11  present at this time.

         12                 Council Member Maria Baez from the

         13  Bronx, Council Member Lew Fidler from Brooklyn,

         14  Council Member Rosie Mendez from Manhattan, and

         15  Council Member James from Brooklyn.

         16                 And I would also like to at this time

         17  wish Council Member James a happy birthday.

         18                 At this time, I'd like to turn it

         19  over to the Administration. We have Mr. Benjamin

         20  Jones, who is the Assistant Commissioner of DOB's

         21  model program, as well as Phyllis Arnold to testify.

         22  And at this time, we're interested in hearing what

         23  the Department has to say.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JONES: Good

         25  afternoon, Chairperson Dilan and members of the
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          2  Committee on Housing and Buildings. My name is

          3  Benjamin Jones and I am Assistant Commissioner of

          4  the Department's Model Code Program. I am joined

          5  today by Phyllis Arnold, the Deputy Commissioner for

          6  Legal Affairs and Chief Code Counsel. Thank you for

          7  this opportunity to testify today in support of

          8  Intro. 425 relating to the Electrical Code. We are

          9  pleased to partner with you in implementing

         10  amendments to the Electrical Code that will reflect

         11  technological advances and will facilitate important

         12  operational changes.

         13                 As you know, Code writing is truly a

         14  craft. It blends the art of designing uniformed

         15  standards with the skill of knowing when they must

         16  be specially tailored to local conditions.

         17                 Standardized rules governing building

         18  construction must give way at times to the

         19  peculiarities of use, occupancy, and density.

         20  Uniformed standards make it easy for people to work

         21  with technical material and facilitate compliant

         22  development of open markets, design and

         23  construction.

         24                 The movement in recent years to

         25  standardize construction rules have consulted in the
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          2  consolidation of Model Code writing associations.

          3                 The International Code Council, about

          4  which you will hear more this winter and spring in

          5  connection with our proposed new construction codes,

          6  was formed in 1994 from the merger of three regional

          7  code-writing organizations.

          8                 The National Fire Protection

          9  Association is the source of uniformity in the

         10  City's electrical standards.

         11                 Adopted in 1915, the New York City

         12  Electrical Code was the first set of modified

         13  electrical standards in the United States. At that

         14  time, the Code was a modern and forward thinking set

         15  of standards that provided a safe and uniformed

         16  means of harnessing electricity. This helped spur

         17  the growth and innovation that our City experienced

         18  over the next century.

         19                 As the last century grew to a close,

         20  however, the existing Electrical Code had become

         21  increasingly unwieldy, difficult to implement and

         22  outdated.

         23                 Despite substantial changes and

         24  improvements in the electrical technology, the Code

         25  had not undergone a major revision during the three
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          2  decades prior to 2001.

          3                 In the aftermath of September 11th,

          4  2001, the Department of Buildings renewed its

          5  commitment to upgrading and implementing policies

          6  that would help lay the foundations for the City's

          7  growth and compliant economic development.

          8                 One of the accomplishments made in

          9  this regard was instituting a long overdue update of

         10  the Electrical Code. Local Law 64 of 2001 addressed

         11  the shortcomings of the Electrical Code by replacing

         12  it with the 1999 National Fire Protection

         13  Association's National Electrical Code, NFPA 70.

         14                 The legislation required periodic

         15  revision of the Code's technical provisions,

         16  ensuring that the Code will always be up-to-date and

         17  reflective of the latest standards.

         18                 It was followed by Local Law 41 of

         19  2002, a prerequisite to implementing the new Code,

         20  as it adopted amendments tailoring the National

         21  Electrical Code, otherwise known as the NEC, with

         22  the specific needs of the high density urban

         23  environment of New York City.

         24                 The first revision in this new scheme

         25  was Local Law 81 of 2003, Intro. 425 is the second.
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          2                 The Department supports two ongoing

          3  working committees that function as the vehicle for

          4  the required periodic review of the NEC and the

          5  source of proposed local amendments.

          6                 The Electrical Code Revision and

          7  Interpretation Committee has a technical focus,

          8  while the Electrical Code Advisory Committee is

          9  responsible for the administrative aspects of the

         10  Code.

         11                 These committees were designed to

         12  make the Electrical Code revision process as

         13  inclusive and transparent as possible, involving

         14  representatives from all sectors of the Electrical

         15  Industry, including labor, real estate interests,

         16  the design community, manufacturers, as well as

         17  involved City agencies.

         18                 Every effort has been made to ensure

         19  that input is received from all stakeholders. We, at

         20  the Department, are grateful for their time and

         21  important contributions.

         22                 Immediately after submission of the

         23  amendments to the 2002 NEC included in Local Law 81

         24  of 2003, the Committees started meeting in order to

         25  review the 2005 NEC. The amendments resulting from
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          2  the review form the basis of Intro. 425. I am proud

          3  to say that these amendments constitute a consensus

          4  document and modify the 2005 NEC to recognize the

          5  unique characteristics of New York City.

          6                 The proposed legislation would amend

          7  the Administrative Code to adopt amendments to the

          8  2005 addition of the National Electrical Code, NFPA

          9  70. The amendments adapt the national standards of

         10  the special requirement of building and construction

         11  in the City of New York. Together the 2005 NEC with

         12  the local amendments will comprise the Electrical

         13  Code of the City of New York, and will apply to work

         14  performed on and after January 1st, 2007.

         15                 The change in the term of the

         16  electrician licenses is proposed for an earlier

         17  effective date, so as to enable the industry to take

         18  advantage of this change this year.

         19                 The 2005 NEC incorporated into the

         20  Code by means of this legislation recognizes

         21  important and ongoing advances in technology and

         22  materials of the past several years, while

         23  substantially reducing the number of local

         24  amendments.

         25                 Taken together, the amended 2005 NEC
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          2  reflected in this bill would do the following as the

          3  Chair noted:

          4                 - maintain the current requirement

          5  for branch feeder types of Arc-Fault Circuit

          6  Interrupters in dwelling unit bedrooms. It deletes

          7  the NEC time limit for its applicability.

          8                 - add requirement for outlets on

          9  balconies, decks and porches.

         10                 - prohibit the use of Metal-Clad

         11  Cable as electrical service conductors for all

         12  buildings. This is an additional safety requirement.

         13                 - allow the use of Rigid non-metallic

         14  Conduit, this includes PVC, fiberglass, et cetera,

         15  in residential dwellings not exceeding three floors.

         16                 - prohibit the use of Electrical

         17  Metallic Tubing in wet locations. This is also an

         18  additional safety requirement to prevent potential

         19  degradation of the metallic tubing that encases the

         20  electrical wiring system.

         21                 - prohibit the use of Flexible

         22  Non-metallic Conduit in hazardous locations. This,

         23  too, is a safety requirement. This type of material

         24  is not suitable for wiring raceways in hazardous

         25  locations.
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          2                 - require Solar Photovoltaic Systems

          3  to be tested as complete assemblies. These systems

          4  transform solar energy into electricity. This

          5  requirement is a safety requirement to prevent

          6  unsafe installations.

          7                 - prohibit the use of Fuel Cells for

          8  emergency systems. Due to the longer response time

          9  that fuel cells require, they are not suitable as

         10  power sources for emergency or life safety systems.

         11                 - classify as Emergency Systems all

         12  legally required standby systems. In New York City,

         13  legally required standby systems are intended only

         14  for use as emergency systems.

         15                 - make numerous organizational

         16  changes that allow the code user to easily identify

         17  the technical advancements since the last edition.

         18                 Administratively, this proposal will:

         19                 - set a deadline of one year for

         20  applicants for a master electrical license to submit

         21  their license application after passing the license

         22  examination. This prevents the passage of

         23  substantial time between exam and license issuance,

         24  which insures that new licensees are familiar with

         25  the latest industry and technological developments.
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          2                 - require all licensee applicants to

          3  provide proof of various insurance coverages,

          4  including $1 million of general liability insurance,

          5  thereby protecting clients and consumers.

          6                 - speed application processing by

          7  allowing a digital signature and seal imprint for

          8  documents submitted electronically to the

          9  Department.

         10                 - broaden the role of the electrical

         11  license board to cover advising the Commissioner

         12  regarding allegations of illegal practices by

         13  licensees and to allow for any other necessary

         14  responsibilities through rule-making.

         15                 - address administrative issues posed

         16  when licensees die.

         17                 - change so as to stagger the

         18  expiration time of licenses.

         19                 - enlarge the period for late

         20  renewals from 30 to 90 days.

         21                 - require that open violations be

         22  closed before renewal of licenses.

         23                 - increase penalties for infractions.

         24                 - impose the requirement that

         25  licensees cooperate with investigations.
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          2                 - liberalize owner authorization

          3  paperwork requirements.

          4                 - give permits a duration of three

          5  years consistent with the Department's plan for

          6  other trades.

          7                 Regarding the provisions in section

          8  14 proposing the elimination of the time limitation

          9  for the Council action, upon further review the

         10  Department thinks that extending the deadline would

         11  be better than eliminating it all together. We would

         12  welcome the opportunity to talk to you further about

         13  this before the next hearing.

         14                 Enactment of this bill will continue

         15  the modernization process begun with Local Laws 64

         16  of 2001, 41 of 2002, and 81 of 2003, and will ensure

         17  that New York City's Electrical Code is updated to

         18  recognize and implement on a regular basis

         19  continuing technological advancements.

         20                 Passage of Intro. 425 will affirm the

         21  partnership developed over the last several years,

         22  between the public and private sectors, that is

         23  dedicated to making New York City the best place to

         24  live, work and build.

         25                 Once again, thank you for holding
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          2  this hearing and allowing me to testify in support

          3  of this important legislation. We would be happy to

          4  make ourselves available before the next hearing to

          5  address any technical or other questions you might

          6  have. And Phyllis and I will be glad to answer

          7  questions now.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, we would

          9  have hoped that at this time maybe you at least had

         10  some technical person here, because with a lot of

         11  this information being highly technical, I think if

         12  Committee members did have some technical questions,

         13  which is, you know, I think necessary, we would hope

         14  at least some of them could be answered at this

         15  time.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JONES: Of

         17  course. We do have some of our technical experts

         18  here, so if you have technical questions, let us

         19  know. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. Good. Then

         21  I'm glad, because with the highly technical nature

         22  of this, I'd like to, just to if you could explain

         23  for me in maybe layman's terms something what the

         24  general public would understand, what is an

         25  Arc-Fault Circuit Interrupter, exactly?
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          2                 MR. MARCOVECCHI: Good afternoon, Mr.

          3  Dilan. My name is Sam Marcovecchi (phonetic). I'm a

          4  member of the Code Unit at the Department of

          5  Buildings, and I'm the resident engineer and in

          6  charge of all the technical changes that were made

          7  to the National Electric Code and adopted to the

          8  needs of New York City.

          9                 Through our working committees, they

         10  were mentioned before, I'm looking forward to

         11  answering any of your questions, technical nature or

         12  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. I guess

         14  the question was, I'll repeat it, if you could just

         15  tell the Committee what an Arc-Fault Circular

         16  Interrupter was?

         17                 MR. MARCOVECCHI: The first bullet

         18  that we have in all this is Arc-Fault Circuit

         19  Interrupter.

         20                 This device was developed to

         21  eliminate the risk of fires in dwelling units in

         22  particular. When Arc situation occurs, for instance,

         23  you have seen this phenomena occurring when you

         24  unplug quickly an appliance in your home and you

         25  pull out the plug from the wall while the appliance
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          2  is on, while it's still powered, you see flash

          3  occurring. Well, this kind of similar incidence can

          4  occur when you have a faulty wiring system or under

          5  any other dangerous situations you have a creation

          6  of an arc that would present the danger of starting

          7  a fire. And if you have, especially in bedrooms,

          8  this is a mandatory requirement now, if you have

          9  linens and all kind of flammable material, in the

         10  presence of such arc which can turn into a flame,

         11  that is a serious risk factor in that dwelling, so

         12  the industry has developed a device that would

         13  interrupt the power to that circuit instantaneous as

         14  it feels, senses the arc interruption.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. And then it

         16  was also decided, I guess why was it decided to

         17  delete the National Electrical Code time limit for

         18  this applicability?

         19                 MR. MARCOVECCHI: The National Code

         20  set a time limit of January 2008, with the intent

         21  that the National Committee is under the impression

         22  that this technology is not fully matured, and then

         23  different iterations of the design might come up in

         24  the near future, and they're willing to put the time

         25  limit and reassess that moment if a different design
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          2  comes up on the market which actually would be a

          3  combination device, and we feel in the City that

          4  this technology is fully matured, especially from

          5  our partners at Dewell (phonetic) and other testing

          6  labs that have confirmed that they're safe and fully

          7  functional devices.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, thank you.

          9  And I guess I want to ask now, I guess to Mr. Jones:

         10  The proposed New York City amendments to the

         11  National Electrical Code, I guess do any provisions

         12  of the legislation or the 2005 Electrical Code

         13  prevent low voltage installers or technicians from

         14  doing any of the work that they currently perform?

         15                 Or Ms. Arnold, if you're better

         16  suited to answer?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD: Okay. I'm

         18  Phyllis Arnold. I'm a Deputy Commissioner at the

         19  Department. And to the extent your question is about

         20  the kind of low-voltage electrical work that can be

         21  performed by low voltage installers, let me say that

         22  the current law has not -- does define low voltage

         23  electrical work who calls for the registration of

         24  LVIs, low-voltage installers. Those provisions were

         25  passed in the last revision cycle. The Department,
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          2  though, has yet to implement the registration, or

          3  the mechanism to oversee the type of work that LVIs

          4  do.

          5                 I understand there has been some

          6  discussion in the context of what has become Intro.

          7  425 about the type of work that LVIs do, versus the

          8  type of work master electricians do, and it is our

          9  design to have a conversation with the affected

         10  stakeholders and, of course, with the Council before

         11  we retake any steps to implement any current

         12  provisions or suggest any proposed amendments.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: I guess it's

         14  possible that there is a change?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD: No. There

         16  is no change in this bill.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: No change, okay.

         18                 The proposed amendments to the Code

         19  also specifically prevent low voltage installers

         20  from working on hybrid power and communication

         21  cables. What are these cables, and why should

         22  low-voltage installers be prohibited from doing this

         23  work?

         24                 MR. MARCOVECCHI: Mr. Chairman, I

         25  would like to address that question, if I may?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Sure.

          3                 MR. MARCOVECCHI: First of all, what's

          4  a hybrid cable? As we all heard so far in

          5  transportation the hybrid vehicle, there is a

          6  combination of two modes of operation. Like a

          7  vehicle, it's half gasoline powered and half

          8  electrical.

          9                 The same terminology applies to

         10  cables. In a hybrid design it's one cable with

         11  integrated portions. One portion is power, and the

         12  other portion is low voltage.

         13                 Now, you question actually first to

         14  why low voltage are limited or not allowed to

         15  install these hybrid cables, it's because of that

         16  component, power component, that cable, that we feel

         17  in the industry that those people are not fully

         18  qualified to handle both sides of this hybrid

         19  design. They could very well deal with lower voltage

         20  part, but when you have side-by-side wires with

         21  different electricity strength, it's not safe for

         22  somebody that doesn't have full training.

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD: Just a

         24  footnote to that. The provision that is reflected in

         25  this bill is current law. As you can see from
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          2  looking at the bill, what the bill does with respect

          3  to the technical standards is repeals and reenacts

          4  the technical local amendments, and that provision

          5  was highlighted, Mr. Chair, in the current law. But

          6  also in the current law, in terms of a limitation of

          7  LVI work, low-voltage electrical work, is that it

          8  excludes work on life-safety systems. And the kind

          9  of hybrid that Mr. Marcovecchi has described to you

         10  might doesn't necessarily exclude that. So, it was

         11  the Committee's view here that it was appropriate to

         12  maintain the current limitation on the hybrid

         13  installation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. We certainly

         15  appreciate the statement you made earlier, that the

         16  Department is interested in working with the

         17  stakeholders.

         18                 I guess with the current code set to

         19  expire, what's the time line that the Department

         20  had?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD: We

         22  figured we would start as soon as we were done here.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, thanks.

         24                 Again, the bill would also require

         25  that all licensee applicants provide proof of
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          2  insurance coverage. Do you estimate that many or

          3  most electricians already have insurance?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD: Probably.

          5                 Most of our trades, as a matter of

          6  the private market, probably have insurance, this

          7  is, I think a legislative hole, gap that we were

          8  looking to fill.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Additionally the

         10  bill would also stagger the expiration dates of the

         11  electrician license holders in the future, could you

         12  explain why DOB believes that this administrative

         13  change is necessary?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD: Under

         15  current law, all of our licenses expire at the end

         16  of the calendar year. We have about 1,800

         17  electricians, licensed electricians, so on December

         18  31st every year, they are rendered ineligible to

         19  file jobs with us. The renewal process called for

         20  them to come in within 30 days prior to that. As you

         21  can imagine, it's a real crunch, both for the

         22  Department and for the industry.

         23                 So, what we're proposing to do is not

         24  unlike what the Department of Motor Vehicle does

         25  with drivers licenses, and that's to stagger their
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          2  expirations, to make it, to facilitate the renewal

          3  process and to eliminate the possibility that come

          4  January 1 of every year, a certain group of late

          5  renewals, if you will, will be prohibited from

          6  filing.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. And then the

          8  bill proposes to increase the role of the licensing

          9  board. In what ways would the Board's function

         10  change?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD: We have

         12  two boards at the Department. We have a Master

         13  Plumber and Fire Piping Contractor License Board,

         14  and we have a Master Electrician License Board. They

         15  are, what we're trying to do overall is coordinate

         16  them and have them work a bit more in tandem and

         17  cover similar types of issues. Ultimately long-term

         18  plan, I think the Master Electricians Licensing

         19  Board in this bill, it is proposed to expand its

         20  current jurisdiction to cover certain illegal

         21  practices.

         22                 Today what the Board does is largely

         23  focus on the qualifications of licensing applicants.

         24  So, they'll scrutinize the experience requirements,

         25  the supervision that an applicant has achieved in
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          2  the seven and a half within ten years immediately

          3  preceding his or her application, and in the future

          4  what we'd like to be able to do is expressly allow

          5  the Board to make referrals, if in the course of its

          6  scrutiny it learns that a current licensee has not

          7  appropriately supervised an applicant or has acted

          8  in some manner that undermines the integrity of the

          9  license.

         10                 Because that relationship between

         11  licensee and applicants is something that the Board

         12  today looks at. What we'd like to do is have the

         13  Board empowered to express referrals and to make

         14  express inquiries about the illegal practices it

         15  might uncover.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. And finally,

         17  in your testimony you said there would be an

         18  increase in fees on infractions. Could you go

         19  through what those fees are, or how much they're

         20  going to go up by?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ARNOLD: Sure.

         22  Just give me a sec.

         23                 Okay, Section 7 of the bill proposes

         24  an amendment to 27-3016 of the Code. These are about

         25  the administrative hearings relative to current
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          2  licenses.

          3                 The current code authorizes the

          4  imposition of a $1,000 penalty for each violation of

          5  the Chapter and what we're proposing to raise that

          6  to $5,000 for infractions by licensees following a

          7  hearing in recommendation to the Commissioner.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Also, I just want to acknowledge the

         11  presence of Council Member Tony Avella who is in the

         12  back of the room, who has joined us, and Council

         13  Member Dennis Gallagher.

         14                 That concludes -- oh, and Council

         15  Member James Oddo, who I did not see behind me. And

         16  I think at this point Jimmy Oddo right now would

         17  trade his vote for two victories in a row. If you

         18  can get that to Jimmy, that's how you get his vote.

         19                 At this point, if my colleagues don't

         20  have any further questions, and I don't see any,

         21  we'd like to thank you for coming by and testifying,

         22  and we look forward to working with you on the

         23  passage of this bill.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER JONES: Thank

         25  you. We look forward to working with you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

          3                 We also have, we've been joined by

          4  Council Member Comrie.

          5                 Okay, we have just about four

          6  speakers signed up on Intro. 425, I believe three of

          7  them are from the Five Borough Electrical

          8  Contractors Association. I will call them up at this

          9  time.

         10                 At this time, I believe the first is

         11  Pasquale Pescatore, Vincent -- excuse me if I

         12  pronounce the name wrong, Logozzo. It looks like a

         13  Mr. Mohammad. Again, gentlemen, excuse me if I

         14  pronounced the names wrong, and you can correct me

         15  as we go forward if I indeed did do so.

         16                 All right, what we'll do, since it's

         17  only four speakers, we'll bring them all up in the

         18  same panel. The last person to speak on this item

         19  will be Sal Anelli, of the NECA. If Sal is here, he

         20  can also join the panel. And gentlemen, you can

         21  start in the order that you were called up.

         22                 MR. PESCATORE: Chairman and Council

         23  members, can you hear me?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Just move it a

         25  little closer.
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          2                 MR. PESCATORE: Okay. Chairman and

          3  Council members, my name is Pasquale Pescatore,

          4  President of Astor Electric, and Treasurer of Five

          5  Borough Electric Contractor Association.

          6                 I've been an electrical contractor

          7  since 1969. I have worked with all codes, and I'm in

          8  favor of Intro. 425. If adopted it would make New

          9  York City building industry one step safer. We are a

         10  large City and we need to adopt Intro. 425 with all

         11  the changes to the 2005 National Code.

         12                 I think no code is perfect, but this

         13  one is close to it.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

         16                 MR. LEGOZZO: Ladies and gentlemen of

         17  the Council, my name is Vincent Legozzo, and I am a

         18  New York City licensed master electrician.

         19                 The name of my company is Aberman

         20  Electric, Incorporated. I would like to begin by

         21  thanking the City Council for the opportunity to

         22  address you this afternoon.

         23                 The Five Borough Electrical

         24  Contractors Association is comprised of more than

         25  300 licensed electrical contractors that currently
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          2  operate businesses within our City.

          3                 As an Executive Board member and Code

          4  Committee Member, I would like to express our

          5  support of the Electrical Code effort that is before

          6  all of you today.

          7                 We appreciate the fact that the

          8  National Electrical Code is being used as the

          9  nucleus and backbone of the New York City Electrical

         10  Code.

         11                 As an organization, we feel that this

         12  new code will help the electrical contractors and

         13  the City of New York in our contribution to making

         14  this wonderful City a safer and more reliable place

         15  to live and work in.

         16                 We applaud the Council for making

         17  this effort. It's our priority by scheduling it the

         18  most important legislation expeditiously. I am

         19  extremely eager to continue to work with the

         20  Department of Buildings on current and future issues

         21  within our industry to help support the efforts in

         22  making this a safer and more enjoyable place to

         23  conduct a business. Together we can all contribute

         24  to keeping the New York, keeping New York the

         25  greatest City in the world.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MR. ANELLI: Chairman, Counsel,

          4  Councilmen and ladies, I am a past president of Five

          5  Borough Electrical Contractors Association, and a

          6  current Code Committee Chairman who sat down with

          7  the City to put a wonderful product together that

          8  you have before you.

          9                 Many hours and --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Sir, if you could

         11  just state your name for the record?

         12                 MR. MOHAMMAD: Oh. My name is Mohammad

         13  A. Mohammad. I'm the licensed contractor for MAM

         14  Electrical Contractors Corporation, and as I said, I

         15  am the past president for Five Borough Electrical

         16  Contractors Association, and a current member of the

         17  Code Committee and chair of that committee with the

         18  Five Borough Electrical Contractors Association.

         19                 I also sit on the committee that put

         20  this wonderful product together, and a lot of hard

         21  work and hours and time went into it, and the main

         22  issue was safety, and regarding a safer community,

         23  as well as in this City, and look forward for you to

         24  accept this product as a meaningful ongoing process,

         25  and only a step to the next, and wish you would
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          2  approve this product so we can go on to the next,

          3  next production.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

          6                 MR. ANELLI: Speaker Dilan, my name is

          7  Sal Anelli. I am a New York City licensed electrical

          8  contractor. I sit on the Code Committee. I sit on

          9  the Advisory Committee, and I also sit under the New

         10  York Master Electricians License Board.

         11                 I am also a member of the National

         12  Electrical Contractors Association, and it is in

         13  that capacity that I am here today.

         14                 I would like to firstly thank you for

         15  allowing me to appear and comment on Intro. 425.

         16                 I was part of the Committee that was

         17  involved in constructing this bill, speaking on

         18  behalf of over 300 New York City electrical

         19  contractors. Affiliated with the National Electrical

         20  Contractors Association I would like to speak in

         21  favor of this bill.

         22                 For the past year, representative of

         23  the electrical industry, volunteering their time and

         24  resources, I have worked together with New York City

         25  Department of Buildings and other related industries
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          2  in modifying the 2005 National Electric Code with

          3  amendments that best preserve the electrical safety

          4  of New York City.

          5                 Over the many long hours and

          6  committees, we have looked at every section article

          7  -- every section and article in the 2005 National

          8  Electrical Code, and where necessary, we have

          9  adopted amendments to make it best work for New York

         10  City.

         11                 This intro encompasses not only the

         12  technical portion of the Code, but the

         13  administrative section. Representatives of the

         14  electrical industries and related industries once

         15  again worked with New York City Department of

         16  Buildings to best offer this part of our Code.

         17                 Throughout these many meetings, we

         18  had our share of differences, however, these

         19  meetings allowed us to understand the Department of

         20  Buildings's concern and conversely the Department of

         21  Building understanding our concerns.

         22                 I believe that this intro ensures

         23  that our industry and the Department of Building

         24  conform to the highest technical, ethical and moral

         25  standards possible.
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          2                 The best part of this is that it is a

          3  work-in-progress. Next year when the 2008 National

          4  Electric Code is part of this, we will start all

          5  over again, meeting in committees, looking at every

          6  section and article of the technical and

          7  administrative standards so that we can further

          8  fine-tune this code.

          9                 Three years from now we will once

         10  again be here before you, before this Committee, to

         11  hopefully recommend the passage of that. This

         12  process will allow the New York City Code to always

         13  be on the cutting edge with the latest technological

         14  advances and always preserving the safest electrical

         15  environment in New York City and its citizens.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. And I

         18  also would like to acknowledge that we've been

         19  joined by Council Member Tom White, and if there are

         20  no questions for the panel, I'd like to thank the

         21  panel for their time and testimony today. And I

         22  would imagine that you gentlemen are part of the

         23  working group that DOB mentioned in their testimony?

         24                 MR. ANELLI: That's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. ANELLI: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, at this

          4  point, with no further speakers, we're going to move

          5  onto the second portion of the hearing today, and

          6  that's on Intro. 426, and I'll do -- do you need

          7  five minutes? All right, so we'll recess for about

          8  five minutes before we get into Intro. 426 while we

          9  await for the Administration to come.

         10                 (Recess taken.)

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, at this

         12  point we're ready to resume the hearing. And we'll

         13  resume tackling Intro. 426. And just very briefly,

         14  Intro. 426 is designed to streamline the inspection

         15  requirements of residential sprinkler systems

         16  imposed by both the Housing Department of

         17  Preservation and Development, and the FDNY to simply

         18  the enforcement and oversight of such inspections

         19  and to streamline it under one agency, namely just

         20  the Fire Department.

         21                 The adoption of this bill would

         22  reduce confusion of current inspection requirements

         23  and impose new flow testing specifications on

         24  certain occupancies. Specifically annual inspection

         25  requirements under the Housing Maintenance Code will
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          2  be eliminated and automatic and non-automatic

          3  monthly flow testing inspections in single-room

          4  occupancies would be exempted from taking place in

          5  the presence of an FDNY inspector. Instead, owners

          6  with appropriate certification would be able to

          7  inspect their own sprinkler systems on a monthly

          8  basis so long as they kept accurate records of each

          9  inspection that would be available upon request of

         10  the agency.

         11                 Flow tests of the sprinkler systems

         12  would be conducted in the presence of the FDNY

         13  inspector only once a year. Alternatively, if flow

         14  pressure is checked during the required monthly

         15  inspection, then the flow test would be conducted in

         16  the presence of an FDNY inspector and conducted only

         17  once every 30 months.

         18                 The Council is concerned about the

         19  maintenance of the sprinkler systems and the City's

         20  role in the inspection process, some property owners

         21  have expressed concerns about the current legal

         22  requirements imposed under the Housing Maintenance

         23  Code to conduct certain annual inspections of a

         24  sprinkler system in certain residences as enforced

         25  by the Department of Housing Preservation and
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          2  Development, while the Fire Department requires

          3  certain monthly inspections of the same sprinkler

          4  system.

          5                 The Committee expects to hear

          6  testimony from representatives of the Fire

          7  Department and representatives of the sprinkler

          8  industry, other professionals and members of the

          9  general public who are concerned with this topic,

         10  and at this time, we have the Fire Department

         11  present and we'd like to hear their testimony.

         12                 We have a Mr. Julian Bazel, we have

         13  Chief Tom Jenson, and then we also have Vito --

         14  Vito, you're going to kill me, I

         15  can't...Mustaciuolo, from HPD. Maybe if you could

         16  join the panel.  And if you have testimony, we'd

         17  certainly like to hear your testimony, as well as

         18  theirs, if you have it.

         19                 At this point, we are ready for the

         20  Fire Department.

         21                 CHIEF JENSEN: Good morning, Chairman

         22  Dilan and Council members. My name is Tom Jensen,

         23  and I am the Assistant Chief of the Bureau of Fire

         24  Prevention for the New York City Fire Department.

         25                 Thank you for the opportunity to
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          2  speak with you today about Intro. 426, which seeks

          3  to amend the City's Administrative Code in relation

          4  to the requirements for periodic inspections and

          5  testing of sprinkler systems in certain residential

          6  occupancies.

          7                 In 1999, the City enacted Local Law

          8  10, following a number of serious fires involving

          9  both civilian and firefighter fatalities.

         10                 Local Law 10 required owners of

         11  buildings classified in occupancy group J 2, with

         12  four or more dwelling units to have periodic

         13  inspections and testing of the sprinkler systems in

         14  those buildings.

         15                 The law further required a licensed

         16  contractor, either a master plumber, or a fire

         17  suppression contractor, to conduct and certify the

         18  results of a flow test of a building sprinkler

         19  system at least once every 30 months, maintain

         20  records of those tests, and have the FDNY witness

         21  the flow test once every five years.

         22                 The City's Housing Maintenance Code

         23  has a similar existing sprinkler system flow test

         24  requirement. Under the Housing Maintenance Code,

         25  owners of multiple dwellings used as a single-room
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          2  occupancy, or converted dwellings, are required to

          3  have licensed plumbers conduct an annual inspection

          4  and flow and pressure test of the sprinkler system.

          5                 As a result, Local Law 10 resulted in

          6  overlapping jurisdiction and redundant sprinkler

          7  system inspection and testing requirements for

          8  owners of multiple dwellings.

          9                 Over time, the FDNY, the Department

         10  of Housing Preservation and Development and the

         11  Mayor's Office began receiving complaints from

         12  elected officials throughout the City and from

         13  individual building owners themselves that the

         14  required periodic inspection and testing

         15  requirements for sprinklers had become confusing.

         16                 Building owners who wanted to comply

         17  with the law were increasingly uncertain as to their

         18  responsibilities under the laws that apply to their

         19  buildings.

         20                 This was especially the case for

         21  small building owners and owner-occupied

         22  brownstones. In an attempt to clarify and

         23  consolidate sprinkler flow testing and inspection

         24  requirements, and to eliminate redundancies between

         25  the Housing Maintenance Code and the Fire Code and
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          2  the FDNY now jointly support this legislation,

          3  Intro. 426.

          4                 The proposed legislation will ensure

          5  that all owners of multiple dwellings in New York

          6  City will only have to deal with a single set of

          7  sprinkler system maintenance requirements and a

          8  single enforcement agency, the FDNY.

          9                 Both HPD and FDNY will continue to

         10  respond to individual sprinkler complaints.

         11                 For your information, attached to

         12  this testimony is a summary of the proposed changes

         13  to the residential sprinkler system flow test and

         14  inspection requirements.

         15                 We thank the Committee for working

         16  with us to advance this legislation. I would be

         17  happy to take your questions at this time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, thank you.

         19                 We have, the Committee has the

         20  attachment that you mentioned. We appreciate that. I

         21  just briefly just want to ask maybe a question or

         22  two and I believe Council Member James has a

         23  question following immediately after I'm done.

         24                 Does the Administration have an

         25  estimate of how many dwelling units, and/or dwelling
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          2  units that use SROs that would be affected by the

          3  changes under the proposed bill related to the

          4  testing and the inspection of the sprinkler systems?

          5                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

          6  (Not identified for the record.) Hi. Good afternoon.

          7  Currently under our section of the law, which again

          8  covers converted dwellings and single-room

          9  occupancies, there are approximately 7,500

         10  buildings.

         11                 Now, that number changes from

         12  day-to-day as buildings are --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: You said 500?

         14                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         15  Approximately 7,500.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Seventy-five

         17  hundred.

         18                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         19  Again, that number changes from day-to-day as

         20  buildings are converted back to private dwellings,

         21  but there are approximately 7,500 buildings where

         22  the owners currently are required to file with both

         23  Departments.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, then I want

         25  to ask, could you just please explain the system of
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          2  imposing the penalties at the ECB for violations of

          3  the maintenance of sprinkler systems?

          4                 MR. BAZEL: (Not identified for the

          5  record.) To the extent a violation is issued,

          6  returnable before the ECB, in all cases, in all

          7  violations, there is by law a 30-day period in which

          8  the owner can submit a cure, and to the extent that

          9  there is a failure to comply with a record-keeping

         10  requirement or other thing, apparently we've allowed

         11  them to submit documentation indicating that they

         12  are now in compliance with that requirement.

         13                 If they submit the cure within the

         14  allotted time period, they submit the cure to the

         15  Fire Department or the issuing enforcement agency,

         16  if the cure is deemed to be sufficient, an entry is

         17  made into the database and there is no hearing and

         18  no penalty.

         19                 If the cure is not submitted or is

         20  not found to be sufficient, then the respondent is

         21  required to appear at the hearing before the

         22  Environmental Control Board and at that point there

         23  is a hearing conducted and if the person has already

         24  complied with the requirement by the hearing date, a

         25  lesser penalty is imposed. If the violation is still
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          2  not corrected at the first hearing date and has to

          3  be adjourned for a later hearing date, a somewhat

          4  more substantial penalty is imposed.

          5                 If the person doesn't appear at all,

          6  there is a default entered in them and they're

          7  subject to the maximum penalty provided by law,

          8  unless they come back at a later date and reopen the

          9  hearing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

         11                 At this point I'm going to turn to

         12  Council Member James.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: She'll be followed

         15  by Council Member Comrie.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

         17  Thank you, Chair. And thank the Chief and Mr.

         18  Mustaciuolo and Counsel. I'm sorry, I didn't get

         19  your last name.

         20                 I, and others, representing the

         21  Brownstone Belt in Brooklyn have been raising this

         22  issue for some time, and so I really want to thank

         23  the Administration for correcting part of the

         24  problem, and I will outline some of the issues that

         25  have been raised by some of my constituents and
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          2  others in downtown Brooklyn.

          3                 First let me follow-up on the answer

          4  to the question by Counsel. That 30-day cure period

          5  is limited to record-keeping only?

          6                 MR. BAZEL: (Not identified for the

          7  record.) No, I was just giving it as an example.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

          9                 MR. BAZEL: Actually, I'm not entirely

         10  sure the cure requirements for particular violations

         11  in this area, I might have to defer to another Fire

         12  Department person on that.

         13                 No, the 35-day period is in all

         14  cases, but the actual nature of the cure is, again,

         15  I'm not familiar with.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, during this

         17  30- or 35-day cure period, an individual who has

         18  been given a fine, and cure the violation, and there

         19  will be no penalty imposed, correct?

         20                 MR. BAZEL: That's correct. There is

         21  an exception to that if there is repeat violations.

         22  The law provides that they're not eligible for that

         23  cure.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And my good

         25  friend, Mr. Mustaciuolo, who has been very helpful
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          2  in my district on a variety of issues, let me

          3  continue to thank you for all that you do.

          4                 Is HPD still involved in the

          5  inspection of sprinklers? And if they are, to what

          6  extent, and for what properties?

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

          8  Certainly. We will still respond to any complaint

          9  called into the system, into 3-1-1, with respect to

         10  a defective sprinkler system. So that is not what

         11  we're proposing here. This is strictly with respect

         12  to the annual certification process.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, HPD is no

         14  longer in the business of the annual inspection?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         16  Well, we never inspected, actually requiring owners

         17  submit an annual inspection.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Got it.

         19                 So, now under the proposed

         20  legislation, they will no longer have to annually

         21  submit to HPD?

         22                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         23  That is correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: That's correct.

         25                 And the only role that HPD will have
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          2  in all of this is, in fact, you'll be responding to

          3  complaints for defective sprinklers?

          4                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

          5  Correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

          8  For the upkeep and maintenance of the system.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay, thank

         10  you.

         11                 The cost of fire inspection, under

         12  the system today, under the current inspection

         13  system, it's my understanding that for a fire

         14  inspection it is now $105; is that correct?

         15                 MR. BAZEL: I understand that to be

         16  correct.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And for the

         18  annual submission to HPD, what was that?

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         20  There is no fee. It's the cost of the test.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And is there

         22  any proposal at this point in time to reduce that or

         23  increase it or remove it, or is there hardship

         24  cases?

         25                 MR. BAZEL: Not that I'm aware of. We
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          2  haven't really focused on that issue. I will say,

          3  just to reemphasize, we're only talking about the

          4  five year, once every five years. The Fire

          5  Department actually goes out and witnesses the flow

          6  test once every five years, every other cycle.

          7                 In the interim, the building owner is

          8  supposed to have a plumber or licensed contractor

          9  come in and test the system and submit paperwork,

         10  but there is no charge for that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, this

         12  monthly inspection, which we are proposing to be

         13  required by FDNY, there will be no fee associated

         14  with it?

         15                 MR. BAZEL: Let me just clarify that.

         16  The monthly inspection, under the current law, and,

         17  you know, there have been some changes as to timing

         18  and so forth with regards to the bill, but the

         19  essential concept here is that the building owner

         20  who gets a basic -- familiarizes himself with the

         21  system and gets a certificate of fitness, can

         22  educate themselves about basic requirements of the

         23  system, where the valves are and whether something

         24  looks like it's broken or not, can do the inspection

         25  themselves.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So you can do

          3  self-inspections?

          4                 MR. BAZEL: Self-inspections. You just

          5  have to keep some kind of records to show that

          6  you've actually been doing it, so when we do come

          7  out, we will ask to see, have you been doing monthly

          8  inspections and provide a log or other appropriate

          9  record keeping.

         10                 But the monthly inspection is

         11  designed to be minimally intrusive, but it is

         12  designed to ensure that this very critical piece of

         13  fire safety system is working.

         14                 So, all what the code is doing is

         15  saying the owner -- and of course, the owner can

         16  hire a plumber to do this, and it's not, apparently

         17  in the HPD world, that's pretty common, is to hire

         18  someone who just does it for you on a monthly basis.

         19  In the Fire Code, we issue a certificate of fitness,

         20  you can study the study materials, it's on line, you

         21  go and take a relatively simple exam and you will be

         22  able to do it yourself. And that is simply a monthly

         23  inspection, you make sure the valves are open, the

         24  sprinkler heads are there, aren't broken, and we're

         25  now envisioning there will be a gauge installed, you
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          2  can make sure there's pressure in the system.

          3                 That's all done by you at your own --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Leisure.

          5                 MR. BAZEL: Leisure, and there is no

          6  charge for it.

          7                 Then you have a licensed professional

          8  come in at 30 months to do a true flow test, to make

          9  sure that the water in the system will flow in the

         10  event the system is activated. You obviously have to

         11  pay a plumber but in this case we've expanded it to

         12  a fire suppression contractor, which I understand

         13  may be somewhat less expensive than a licensed

         14  plumber, if you like.

         15                 And then you file that paperwork with

         16  the Fire Department, no charge there. It's only

         17  every other cycle, which is every five years, the

         18  Fire Department will schedule an appointment for you

         19  and for licensed professional at which they will

         20  witness that.

         21                 Also to the extent your building has

         22  a standpipe, which is a way of putting water into

         23  the system to put out a fire, if you have a

         24  standpipe, that will all be folded into the same

         25  test. And we originally, even before Local Law 10 of
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          2  1999, any building that had a standpipe we were

          3  already doing these five-year inspections, so this

          4  has all been consolidated into one inspection.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Are you

          6  offering training to citizens of New York with

          7  regards to this self-inspection? Or can you or are

          8  you considering it?

          9                 MR. BAZEL: Well, let me just say the

         10  Fire Department runs a very user-friendly

         11  examination unit, and we certify all kinds of people

         12  from very basic skills, such as a fire guard, how,

         13  you know, people who are actually certified to be at

         14  events or if systems aren't working, just to stand

         15  there and report a fire, people from a very basic

         16  level of skills to some of the most sophisticated

         17  jobs, like Fire Safety Directors in office

         18  buildings.

         19                 So, we run a very sophisticated

         20  operation. And what they've done over the years is

         21  the testing is all done on computer. You don't have

         22  to wait for the results. You come in, you get your

         23  results immediately.  It gives you a little

         24  analysis, you know, if you failed the test, what you

         25  did wrong. The study materials that are all you need
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          2  to study for the exam are actually on our website,

          3  can be obtained by calling our licensing office and

          4  mail it out. And I think there has been discussion

          5  here about trying to, we're working on developing a

          6  test specifically for small homeowners so that they

          7  don't have to be as familiar with more complex

          8  systems that might appear in larger buildings. So,

          9  we're doing those things.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes. You

         11  alluded to plumbers charging, they're rather

         12  expensive.

         13                 MR. BAZEL: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And the

         15  complaints I get, that plumbers are taking advantage

         16  of the market, and in fact, some of them are

         17  overcharging, in fact, for their services.

         18                 Is there some sort of regulation in

         19  place with regards to how much a plumber could

         20  charge for these services? Is that something that

         21  the Department is considering looking at? Or is

         22  there some legal challenges to that?

         23                 MR. BAZEL: Unfortunately, that's

         24  really beyond our jurisdiction. We don't regulate

         25  plumbers. They're regulated by the Department of
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          2  Buildings through their Master Plumber Board.

          3                 You know, unfortunately, I think

          4  we're all aware that licensed plumbers have a very

          5  good business, and I'm not sure, to the extent that

          6  there is a significant problem in this area, I think

          7  we would definitely talk to Buildings or any other

          8  body that has influence on that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And you said,

         10  it's the Department of Buildings, the Master Plumber

         11  --

         12                 MR. BAZEL: Yes, the Master Plumber

         13  License Board I believe is the official name.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: License Board?

         15                 MR. BAZEL: Yes.

         16                 Plumbers are licensed by the

         17  Department of Buildings through their, one of their

         18  boards.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And the

         20  alternative is a fire suppression contractor?

         21                 MR. BAZEL: Right. These are people

         22  who are, under the Building Code are authorized to

         23  do installations above a certain size, if I'm

         24  correct on that.

         25                 They are specialized in installing
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          2  fire sprinkler systems and devices of that sort.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: The other issue

          4  that comes up consistently is the fact that FDNY

          5  doesn't really have a help desk or a customer

          6  service desk? Or outreach desk.

          7                 Where do I refer my constituents to?

          8  They would like to believe that I know all things,

          9  but when it comes to sprinklers, I'm clueless?

         10                 MR. BAZEL: Well, I know the Bureau of

         11  Fire Prevention has something called "Field Public

         12  Communications" that takes complaints. A Field

         13  Public Communications Unit, which is I think the

         14  complaint number that would be most appropriate in

         15  this context where they're specifically talking

         16  about a required test or something of that sort. And

         17  if they receive a complaint about, you know, a

         18  condition in their building, they do dispatch the

         19  local fire company or specialized unit to do an

         20  inspection.

         21                 Now, I'm not sure what the nature of

         22  the complaint is, obviously if it's about the

         23  licensing issues, we would probably refer them to

         24  the License Bureau.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Though I'm sure
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          2  that it's rare, if, in fact, we have an overzealous

          3  inspector from the Fire Department, who do we

          4  complain to?

          5                 MR. BAZEL: I would suggest in that

          6  instance, and the Chief can correct me, but I think

          7  you should contact the Chief of Fire Prevention.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I mean, I know

          9  I can contact the Chief, but what about residents,

         10  constituents, the elderly; who should they contact?

         11                 CHIEF JENSEN: You could probably call

         12  3-1-1 and put it on record there, and the complaint

         13  is routed to the Fire Department, through the

         14  Commissioner's Office down through the Chief of Fire

         15  Prevention. We get complaints through that route

         16  normally.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Even though I'm

         18  sure that it's rare, there have been instances where

         19  individuals from the Fire Department have

         20  intimidated some constituents, believe it or not.

         21                 CHIEF JENSEN: Well, I mean I haven't

         22  heard of that, but any complaints like that will be

         23  taken seriously. And particularly I think 3-1-1 is a

         24  good route because it's documented through the whole

         25  chain of command.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And where are

          3  the inspection forms kept? Are they kept by the Fire

          4  Department? Should they be kept by the owner? The

          5  requirements, the onus of the requirements is on

          6  what party?

          7                 CHIEF JENSEN: The monthly inspection

          8  is basically a log that is kept by the owner, and

          9  when the inspections are made, the inspector will

         10  check the log that the owner is in fact, you know,

         11  monthly visiting, checking the system.

         12                 The two and a half year test,

         13  30-month test, that would be, the results of that by

         14  the contractor would be filed with the Fire

         15  Department. And at the five-year mark, when the Fire

         16  Department actually comes out to observe the test,

         17  they would take your records.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay. I'm

         19  certain that I have some other questions, and,

         20  again, perhaps we can have a meeting off-line with

         21  some constituents, with some other outstanding

         22  issues concerning the Brownstone Belt in Brooklyn.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you, Council

         25  Member James. You raised some very interesting
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          2  points. I would hope that I could refer or at least

          3  lean on you for assistance on what an Arc-Fault

          4  Circuit Interrupter is.

          5                 Council Member Comrie.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair.

          8                 Good afternoon.

          9                 I really just wanted to congratulate

         10  all the parties involved in bringing this sprinkler

         11  bill to the point where it's almost ready to be

         12  voted out, having worked on it earlier, and with the

         13  previous chair trying to bring all of the different

         14  issues together to make it happen.

         15                 Council Member James actually stole

         16  most of the questions, being extensively well versed

         17  on the topic, and regarding the maintenance of

         18  records and who owns the records, and she asked my

         19  questions about whether or not the Fire Department

         20  was doing training of people to be able to do this

         21  themselves. So, I think she's asked pretty much all

         22  of the questions I wanted to ask.

         23                 When would this be effective by? Will

         24  there still have to be a set of rules promulgated

         25  before it is deemed effective? Or will it be
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          2  effective at this point after the bill is signed?

          3                 MR. BAZEL: The law, by its terms,

          4  says it takes effect 180 days, 180 days after its

          5  enactment.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, will you

          7  have to set out a new set of rules and regs, a new

          8  set of books that, you know, people are always

          9  looking for?

         10                 MR. BAZEL: We have existing rules on

         11  the flow test and on the inspection requirements. We

         12  might have to review them, in light of the fact that

         13  we have somewhat different occupancies here, and we

         14  might want to tweak them a bit.

         15                 Since the law doesn't take effect for

         16  six months, I think we might well make some

         17  amendments during this period.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, you

         19  believe you can get whatever documentation changed

         20  and distributed within a six-month period?

         21                 MR. BAZEL: I would think so.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, great.

         23  That would be helpful.

         24                 And once it's signed and it would be

         25  enacted immediately, what about for this particular
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          2  heating season? Or this particular, anyone that

          3  would come up with a permitted inspection within

          4  that particular period, would they fall under the

          5  old rules or the new regulations?

          6                 MR. BAZEL: I think if the law is not

          7  in effect, it would still, the existing regulations

          8  would be in place. The agencies may coordinate in

          9  some way to smooth the transition. And exactly how

         10  that would work out, I would have to defer to the

         11  people in the units but there may be some ways that

         12  they can allow things to await the new regulations.

         13                 But I have to defer to them on that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Well,

         15  and that way you could get it done on a timely

         16  basis, and we can move on to other challenges,

         17  correct?

         18                 MR. BAZEL: Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: All right.

         20  With that, I want to thank Council Member James for

         21  her in-depth questioning, as well. And thank you,

         22  Mr. Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you, Council

         24  Member Comrie.

         25                 If there is nothing further for the
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          2  Committee, from the Committee, we'll go back to

          3  Council Member James for one follow-up question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I'm sitting

          5  here thinking about legislation, and perhaps a

          6  preferred price list I guess, for the Department of

          7  Buildings Master Plumbing License Board; what are

          8  your thoughts on that?

          9                 MR. BAZEL: I would not want to hazard

         10  an opinion on something I really don't know much

         11  about. I'm certainly not looking to incur the ire of

         12  the plumbers.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And what about

         14  a mandate to create a customer service or an

         15  outreach unit help desk at the Fire Department?

         16                 CHIEF JENSEN: It's something that we

         17  should look into, particularly if it would be

         18  dealing with the private homeowners for the C of

         19  F's.

         20                 I just want to say that with the

         21  inclusion of the sprinkler system contractor, it

         22  just may be market forces that will make the

         23  plumbers bring down their prices a bit, if their

         24  competition is not as high priced, you know, the

         25  competition might solve that problem.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: That's true.

          3                 And lastly, the idea of legislation

          4  to mandate that you exempt the prices, the fees for

          5  inspection in cases of hardship, or for the elderly?

          6                 MR. BAZEL: That, I mean that's a

          7  difficult issue. It's not really limited just to

          8  this particular certificate or inspection.

          9                 You know, the Code provides certain

         10  exemptions for non-for-profits and religious

         11  institutions, but right now I'm not aware of any

         12  waiver for senior citizens or --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So perhaps we

         14  can expand it to include seniors?

         15                 MR. BAZEL: Well, I think that's a

         16  complicated issue and it should be addressed in the

         17  appropriate forum. It's not something I'm really in

         18  a position to comment on.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you, Council

         22  Member James.

         23                 I guess lastly, I wanted to just

         24  discuss maybe some of the fiscal impacts of the

         25  legislation. I guess the bill would, I guess,
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          2  provide incentive for the homeowner to purchase some

          3  sort of pressure gauge for flow testing; is that

          4  correct?

          5                 MR. BAZEL: That's right.

          6                 One way that we felt that it was

          7  appropriate for, to people on the two-and-a-half

          8  year, 30-month flow test schedule, was to sort of

          9  make the monthly inspection by the building owner

         10  more meaningful by having a gauge that would assess

         11  the pressure in the sprinkler system.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. And what's

         13  going to be the average cost to the homeowner for

         14  this pressure gauge? How much does the gauge cost

         15  per unit, approximately?

         16                 MR. BAZEL: I mean, my understanding

         17  we're talking about the cost of the part in the

         18  installation in the $50 to $100 range, that's our

         19  experience.

         20                 I mean, it may be more or less, but I

         21  think that we're not -- it's in that area, based on

         22  our prior experience. Maybe things will change now

         23  that more people may be doing it. It may go up or

         24  down, I don't know.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, so then I
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          2  have a two-part question. How do you propose to I

          3  guess educate the homeowners, or this I guess new

          4  incentive, and would the Department or the

          5  Administration, you know, this part of the question

          6  may be, you know, something that the Mayor's Office

          7  may have to answer, and I guess is the Department

          8  opposed to any type of tax credit toward the

          9  homeowner, toward this purchase? It's very minimal,

         10  but --

         11                 MR. BAZEL: Yes, we're not equipped to

         12  comment on a tax benefit.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: All right. Then

         14  the education portion of it, how do you I guess

         15  propose -- not education, but just information. How

         16  is the Department I guess proposing to let the

         17  general public know about this incentive and how

         18  they can go about getting it?

         19                 MR. BAZEL: Well, I guess we'll be

         20  getting information from HPD as to the people that

         21  they have on their inspection program or on their --

         22  in this category of occupancies that have sprinkler

         23  systems. And I guess we will, as part of sort of

         24  gearing up our process, they'll do some kind of

         25  communication with the homeowners, advising them
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          2  that a Fire Department inspection is going to be

          3  scheduled, or advising them of the obligation to

          4  comply with Fire Department inspections.

          5                 Exactly how that will be done I think

          6  remains to be worked out.

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

          8  Yes, we will certainly share with the Fire

          9  Department our information in our database, and it's

         10  also not unreasonable for us to do a mailing to the

         11  owners that currently are required to file with HPD.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay.

         13                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         14  Mailing the information on the program.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. And then

         16  lastly, I guess the fiscal impact between agencies,

         17  would the Fire Department require any more or less

         18  resources, and would HPD require any more or less

         19  resources?

         20                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER MUSTACIUOLO:

         21  It would have no impact on HPD.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: No impact.

         23                 CHIEF JENSEN: When the inspection

         24  process is in full swing, we expect we will probably

         25  have to hire several more inspectors to keep up with
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          2  the workload. We anticipate more inspections since

          3  we're picking up several thousand of these buildings

          4  we estimate.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. But no

          6  estimate on the exact dollar at this point?

          7                 CHIEF JENSEN: Not at this time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay.

          9                 I would like to thank the panel for

         10  the information on Intro. 426. Thanks for coming

         11  down today.

         12                 CHIEF JENSEN: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, we have just

         14  one panel, and that should conclude our hearing. I

         15  would like to call up Mr. Frank Ricci, from RSA. Mr.

         16  Eddie Boles from the Uniformed Fire Offices

         17  Association. Ms. Sharon Barnes, private homeowner,

         18  and I won't read her address out. And a Melissa

         19  Barbour from the New York Fire Sprinkler Contractors

         20  Association.

         21                 If you have any testimony, please

         22  give it to the Sergeant-At-Arms.

         23                 Okay, it looks like we have -- you

         24  can begin in the order that you're called.

         25                 MR. RICCI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2  My name is Frank Ricci. I'm the Director of

          3  Government Affairs for the Rent Stabilization

          4  Association.

          5                 We are the trade association in New

          6  York City that represents about 25,000 building

          7  owners in New York City, collectively between those

          8  building owners and the managers, it represents

          9  about 1 million units of Housing in New York City.

         10                 I just want to say that we are

         11  strongly in favor of this legislation. I'm sure that

         12  when the Deputy Chief referred to the complaints

         13  they got from building owners earlier, probably half

         14  were from Councilwoman James's district and the

         15  other half were probably my members and myself

         16  included. This has been an issue ongoing for us for

         17  several years. Typically what would happen is an

         18  owner would do the housing maintenance inspection,

         19  hire a plumber once a year, pay anywhere's from $100

         20  to $500 to have that inspection done, and then

         21  within a few months you would get a notice from the

         22  Fire Department, have essentially the same

         23  inspection done, which would cost, once again,

         24  roughly the same amount, and would also include

         25  changes you would have to make to fulfill the Fire
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          2  Department requirements, and that could run you

          3  another thousand dollars easily. So, I know earlier

          4  there was some discussion about fees, and quite

          5  honestly, the $105 fee is nothing compared to what

          6  building owners were experiencing making the changes

          7  to the systems to comply with the Fire Department

          8  and the HPD inspections.

          9                 So, I just want to say we support

         10  this bill. We applaud the fact that you're removing

         11  some duplication, and I know there was some

         12  discussion in the earlier testimony about the Help

         13  desk, maybe, at the Fire Department, that would be

         14  helpful.

         15                 I know I, myself, in the process of

         16  dealing with our members on this, I went and I took

         17  the test to get a certificate of fitness myself, and

         18  I did pass the test.

         19                 But I can see where it's not easy for

         20  -- let me back up a minute. Roughly about half of

         21  our members, English is not their first language.

         22  So, if English is not your first language, this is

         23  not an easy test. It is technical in nature. I have

         24  an engineering degree, so I think that helped a

         25  little bit to help me pass it, but they could
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          2  simplify it somewhat, but they could definitely use

          3  a help desk there.

          4                 It is a bit of a confusing situation

          5  for the novice who goes to the Fire Department. Most

          6  of the people taking those tests are employees of

          7  fire suppression companies or licensed plumbers, so

          8  they have kind of an idea of how to just navigate

          9  the lines at Metrotech. So, a help desk would be

         10  helpful and I think it's a step in the right

         11  direction. But overall, we do support this bill.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. BOLES: Good afternoon, Council

         14  Member Dilan and Council members, thank you for the

         15  opportunity to speak today in regards to Intro. 426.

         16                 My name is Eddie Boles. I'm the

         17  Lieutenants rep from the Uniformed Fire Officers

         18  Association representing 2,500 fire officers in the

         19  FDNY. And I apologize for not having written

         20  testimony today.

         21                 I just want to first extend a thanks

         22  to Council Member Mendez and her staff. We had a

         23  recent street renamed for Battalion Chief Shufhold

         24  (phonetic) and Battalion Chief Marjbanks (phonetic)

         25  in Harlem on Saturday. It was a very moving
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          2  experience and I really appreciated all the efforts

          3  from the Council supporting that street renaming.

          4                 The UFOA Police supports the position

          5  of the FDNY in proposed legislation Intro. 426. Our

          6  union takes the position that any amendments that

          7  enhances the safety of our public and our members,

          8  and in this case ensuring the full operation and

          9  maintenance of the sprinkler system is fully

         10  supported by the Fire Officers Union.

         11                 The Sprinkler System installed in

         12  residential buildings plays a role in saving lives

         13  and to reduce the spread of fire.

         14                 This we feel plays an intricate role

         15  in overall fire safety. We applaud the City Council

         16  in introducing Intro. 426, and we will continue to

         17  support any legislation that will help protect our

         18  members and save lives.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

         21                 MS. BARNES: I'm Sharon Barnes. I'm a

         22  homeowner in the Brownstone Belt. And what I would

         23  like to do is just tell you a little bit about my

         24  experience when this whole process started for our

         25  neighborhood, and I can tell you a little bit about
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          2  cost and other things.

          3                 And I'd like to start out by saying,

          4  in our neighborhood, our impression was that a lot

          5  of this was done partly because of the number of

          6  fires that had occurred in Prospect Heights, and

          7  many of these fires were considered suspicious. But

          8  when suspicious fires happen, we almost never, ever

          9  hear about tough investigations or severe penalties.

         10  And we have the feeling that a lot of suspicious

         11  fires could be controlled if there were very severe

         12  penalties for those who have been involved.

         13                 And we just don't feel that that part

         14  of the equation is being addressed at all. And the

         15  best sprinkler system in the world is not going to

         16  work if somebody who has something to gain can flip

         17  it off and start a fire.

         18                 So, the inspections and the penalties

         19  for that kind of thing have to be used. The

         20  community has to know that there are investigations

         21  if something happens. We all heard about or live

         22  near where one of these happened, and it just seems

         23  like nothing every happened.

         24                 But let me go now to the inspection

         25  process, and I'll tell you what happened, just as a

                                                            71

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  homeowner.

          3                 We got a notice plastered on our

          4  doors. It happened all up and down the block. And we

          5  called the telephone number. It was a pretty

          6  aggressive notice, that you were going to be

          7  inspected and needed to call this number

          8  immediately.

          9                 When we did that, we were dealt with

         10  in a very aggressive manner. One person on the block

         11  who had a cancer operation scheduled was told, in

         12  very aggressive terms, that either you be there,

         13  lady, for that inspection, or you're going to get a

         14  huge fine. And she worked with her doctors and

         15  hospital to change that so that she could be there

         16  for that inspection.

         17                 When we asked questions, some people

         18  were hollered at by the person whose name was on

         19  that flyer. It was very intimidating, and we were

         20  told that we should get a plumber to come in. We had

         21  to get a plumber to come in and review our personal

         22  situation in our property before the Fire Department

         23  would come.

         24                 So, we all started doing that, and

         25  right away we started, there was a huge buzz on the
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          2  block because the plumbers were coming in and they

          3  were saying you've got to put in the gauge. That

          4  came up. That was one of the first things.

          5                 I went to a plumbing inspection

          6  supply -- excuse me, a plumbing supply house, and

          7  found that at that point, that was about two years

          8  ago, I could purchase that gauge for $7.50. The

          9  range of prices for having that gauge installed were

         10  $700. That was the cheapest I could get. I paid $700

         11  to have that installed.

         12                 Other people were told three-, four-,

         13  five-thousand dollars. Other people were told that

         14  they had to change all the sprinkler heads. They

         15  were told they had to put signs here, signs there.

         16  Signs, a little plastic sign, $150, $400. We were

         17  all in a panic, and there were people, all of us,

         18  none of us could afford that kind of money, but we

         19  were told by these plumbing companies that we had to

         20  do it or we were going to be in big trouble, we were

         21  going to go to hearings, we were going to go to

         22  this, we were going to do that, and we were

         23  terrified. I have to tell you, we were terrified.

         24                 I finally convinced a number of

         25  people on my block, I said let's make sure your
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          2  sprinkler heads are clean. Let's do everything to

          3  try to manage this, and let's see what happens in

          4  the inspection before you go spending five- to

          5  ten-thousand dollars to these plumbers.

          6                 So, I cleaned all of mine and got

          7  everything done. The people who came from the Fire

          8  Department, the inspector actually was very

          9  cooperative, and I didn't have to do any of the

         10  stuff that these plumbers had been telling me needed

         11  to be done.

         12                 I saved about $6,000 because I didn't

         13  do it. But I did have to pay $600 to have a $7.50

         14  gauge put in, and it took him less than five minutes

         15  to install that, that I paid $700 for.

         16                 People down the block, one woman

         17  spent four- to five-thousand dollars to have all of

         18  the sprinkler heads changed. We asked if it was

         19  necessary. I told her, I said save those heads, save

         20  at least one of them that was taken off. No, those

         21  heads did not need to be changed.

         22                 So, what happens is, and whether the

         23  Fire Department realizes this or not, when they give

         24  you that aggressive notice, and when you call up and

         25  they scream at you, and tell you to get a plumber
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          2  there, and lady you're going to be there, you're

          3  going to get this, you're going to get that, you

          4  call those plumbing companies and they know that you

          5  are terrified and you have no alternative. And those

          6  plumbing companies, they were up and down the block

          7  for three weeks. And, you know, I have a little bit

          8  of hootspa, and I was trying to stand up to this,

          9  but I was terrified. And the older people on the

         10  block were shaking. What do I do about this? I don't

         11  have $5,000 to do this. I don't have $3,000.

         12                 And there was no recourse. We didn't

         13  know who to go to. We tried to call the Fire

         14  Department name on that flyer. We got nothing but

         15  aggression and threats.

         16                 So, it was only by word of mouth that

         17  we convinced some of the people, just make sure if

         18  the head is clean, it's not dusty, be cooperative.

         19  Here are the signs. We went and we found a place

         20  that would make these simple little plastic signs,

         21  it probably cost them five bucks to make, we could

         22  get them for about $105. We had to have like three

         23  of them put in. We tried to get them, the plumbers,

         24  to put in this $7.50 piece, you know, the cheapest

         25  we found was six- or seven-hundred dollars. So, we
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          2  got people to try to do what they could themselves,

          3  and then to wait for the inspection and not do all

          4  of this unnecessary work until the inspector said

          5  whether or not it was necessary.

          6                 But that took a lot of courage to do

          7  that, because the plumbers were telling you, and the

          8  person on this flyer was telling you that if you had

          9  a problem, you were going to be in big trouble.

         10                 So, it took courage to stand up and

         11  say, okay, I'm going to get it ready. I'll let the

         12  inspection happen, and if they tell me I've got to

         13  do stuff, I'll do it, but we were afraid of getting

         14  violations, and there is one family that got several

         15  violations for just silly things. Ridiculous things.

         16  Putting the wrong address on a form. When they said

         17  what is your work address, the person thought they

         18  meant his work address, so they put the work

         19  address, and what they really meant is what is the

         20  address of the home.

         21                 And so they got a violation and gone

         22  to court and this and that.

         23                 If you are the homeowner going

         24  through this, you would be really intimidated, and

         25  that's the piece of it that needs to change.

                                                            76

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 I don't know how you do it. The Fire

          3  Inspector said, no, you can't control the prices,

          4  they can't deal with that. But it is open season on

          5  the home owner by these plumbing firms. They know

          6  you have no recourse, and they're going to charge

          7  anything they want, and that is the problem. It is a

          8  very big problem. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

         10                 MS. BARBOUR: Hi. I'm Melissa Barbour.

         11  I'm the Director of the New York Fire Sprinkler

         12  Contractors Association.

         13                 I'm sorry for your experience. I

         14  don't work with plumbers, I work with fire

         15  suppression contractors, thankfully. But in answer

         16  to your concerns, something before I testify, that

         17  comes to mind in my experience, in my previous

         18  position I worked with HVAC contractors and we used

         19  to do a program called "Heats On," and that would be

         20  a program where contractors would team up with

         21  elderly or economically-disadvantaged homes and look

         22  at their home heating system and see that it

         23  functions, were it going to be okay for the winter,

         24  for free. Maybe that's something that our

         25  contracting association can look into, you know, to

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  reach out to the community.

          3                 At our last association meeting we

          4  reviewed this bill, and the one concern that our

          5  contractors had was the word "if installed," were

          6  the words "if installed," which is in Section 2,

          7  paragraph 2-A, that stated that a static pressure

          8  must be taken from a pressure gauge if installed,

          9  located at or near the inspectors test connection,

         10  making certain this system designed pressure is

         11  being maintained. And the legislation then goes on

         12  to state that the system with a gauge installed is

         13  subject to a flow test every 30 months, and the

         14  system without a gauge must be tested yearly.

         15                 The contractors in my association

         16  felt that the gauge is really a necessary component

         17  and should always be installed, and without it that

         18  they could not check the water in the system, that

         19  the water in the system will flow properly, and

         20  maintaining adequate pressure is vital to the

         21  successful operation of the sprinkler system.

         22                 In addition, a flow test cannot be

         23  adequately performed if the pressure cannot be

         24  measured. Therefore, we would recommend that rather

         25  than requiring buildings without gauges to be
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          2  subject to annual flow tests, that the buildings be

          3  required to install gauges and then be subject to

          4  the flow test every 30 months.

          5                 And from the contractors I spoke to,

          6  for a homeowner it would be more cost effective to

          7  have the gauge put in and then do the test every 30

          8  months, as opposed to hiring someone to do the test

          9  annually.

         10                 So, and as for, I asked also for

         11  pricing because I knew that that's always a concern,

         12  I was told that it is, most contractors will charge

         13  between four- and five-hundred dollars for a flow

         14  test. That's the average price, the going price in

         15  the market. And about $500 for a gauge and the labor

         16  to install it.

         17                 So, I just want -- you know, I don't

         18  know if that helps, but that was the feeling from

         19  the contractors.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, thank you.

         21  And I also want to say I'm sorry to hear about your

         22  experience, and I think the intent of the

         23  legislation is to make it easier for homeowners such

         24  as yourself.

         25                 But, again, I want to state that the
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          2  gauge itself is not required in the legislation.

          3  It's an incentive. And I guess the Committee will at

          4  this point look at the true cost of what those

          5  gauges go for on the market.

          6                 In terms of your objection, I think

          7  the Committee will try to address the objection, if

          8  possible, and try to build consensus with some of

          9  the stakeholders to see if any changes is acceptable

         10  there.

         11                 It looked like we had a question from

         12  two members of the panel. We'll take those. And I

         13  guess if any Council members have any questions for

         14  the panel? Council Member James. We get to those,

         15  and then we'll conclude the hearing.

         16                 MR. RICCI: Chairman, I was just going

         17  to clarify the last point that she made about the

         18  gauge. The reason it's written that way in the bill,

         19  and we had many meetings with the Fire Department on

         20  this, I believe it's only a transition language. As

         21  the Fire Department is doing many of these

         22  inspections, a lot of them are happening for the

         23  first time ever at some of these converted

         24  dwellings. As they do it, they are requiring the

         25  gauge. So the reason it's worded the way it is, is
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          2  to catch both categories until everything is fully

          3  gauged in the City, which is why we didn't have

          4  opposition to it.

          5                 So I think eventually everything

          6  winds up there just in the interim, you need to have

          7  coverage of both. If you don't have the gauge, they

          8  want to inspect it once a year. So, I don't even

          9  know if it really needs to be addressed, but

         10  eventually if you hit every building at least once,

         11  every building will have a gauge.

         12                 MS. BARNES: They told us they

         13  wouldn't do the inspection without the gauge. That

         14  was one of the things that we were told, that we had

         15  to put the gauge in.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: When you say

         17  "they," who? The Fire Department.

         18                 MS. BARNES: We were told the Fire

         19  Department would not come until we had a plumber

         20  come and go through the system, make sure everything

         21  was right, and the plumbing companies told us we had

         22  to put the gauge in.

         23                 I mean, it's good to have the gauge,

         24  because it simplifies the monitoring procedure. But

         25  it gives them another hook to tell you you've got to
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          2  do this and you have no idea what it really should

          3  cost, and they give you such short time frames, you

          4  know, that you don't have the time, or the energy to

          5  know how to go to the plumbing supply, find out what

          6  it costs, and then you find out it took them less

          7  than five minutes to install the thing. You know,

          8  you watch them, it's nothing. They just screw it

          9  off, screw it on. And, so, you're kind of shocked,

         10  why should that cost several thousand dollars? And I

         11  said I got mine for $600 but it was because by then

         12  I was a little knowledgeable.

         13                 But one other question I had, when we

         14  do electrical work or, you know, any kind of work

         15  with DOB, the inspectors come out, and we don't pay

         16  a separate fee for that. So, it's curious to me as

         17  why we need to pay a separate fee to the Fire

         18  Department for inspection?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: I think what we

         20  could do at this point is maybe just address the

         21  question after the hearing is over. The Committee is

         22  not really structured to take questions from the

         23  panel.

         24                 So, at this point we'll turn to

         25  Council Member James.

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, Ms.

          3  Barbour, you indicated that the price for a fire

          4  suppression contractor for an inspection is between

          5  $400, four- to five-hundred dollars?

          6                 MS. BARBOUR: That was when we went

          7  around and I just called a couple of the contractors

          8  in our association, and I said I just would like to

          9  know what would that run, in case I'm calling them.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, according

         11  to Mrs. Barnes's testimony, to replace a gauge or to

         12  fit a gauge, you know, the price of an actual gauge

         13  is six, seven dollars, so most of this is for labor?

         14                 MS. BARBOUR: I will assume. I'll be

         15  honest, I have no idea how much a gauge costs.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: My last

         17  question is, the Chief testified earlier, this

         18  competition somehow is going to reduce the price

         19  normally in a market that would work. I mean,

         20  that's, you know, a basic concept. But four to

         21  five-hundred dollars versus six-hundred dollars, I

         22  don't see much savings.

         23                 MS. BARBOUR: No, I would agree. I

         24  guess when you would compare it to two, or

         25  three-thousand, that would be a big savings.
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          2                 You know, as the Director of the

          3  Association, again, I don't have anything to do with

          4  what the market pricing is.

          5                 I can say that a homeowner could call

          6  either, you know, my association or there are other

          7  associations, and say does this sound like an

          8  average price? Or is this contractor involved?

          9                 For example, our association, we go

         10  to all the license board meetings, we sit on the

         11  operations meetings with the Department of

         12  Buildings. I mean, you want to have, maybe have a

         13  contractor that, you know, we don't just accept

         14  everyone into our association. If they're not a

         15  reputable contractor, we don't want them in, so

         16  perhaps that's a good --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: No, I

         18  understand. I don't mean to make you defensive.

         19                 MS. BARBOUR: Oh, no, no --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I'm just trying

         21  to understand it myself.

         22                 MS. BARBOUR: Oh, no, no. I'm saying

         23  that maybe is a good resource for a homeowner to go

         24  to one of the associations --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right. And then
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          2  my last question is, so, if, in fact, a plumber

          3  and/or a contractor comes to, you know, they inspect

          4  one's home, and they say, well, your gauge needs to

          5  be replaced, who is in a position to challenge that?

          6  Clearly not the homeowner? You're at the whim of the

          7  contractor and/or plumber.

          8                 And Ms. Barnes, for full disclosure,

          9  is my constituent. Most of those complaints happen

         10  in my district, and Ms. Barnes is clearly, she's a

         11  force to be reckoned with and if, in fact, someone

         12  intimidated her and/or my constituents, I believe

         13  it.

         14                 So, Ms. Barnes wanted to say

         15  something.

         16                 MS. BARNES: On the testing part, I

         17  think you commented that the test was not as easy as

         18  some people made it out to be. I went and took the

         19  test, because in talking about the prices, if you

         20  have to do the monthly inspections, and some of the

         21  older people in our block were asking about this,

         22  and when they asked the plumbers, well, what's the

         23  cost to come back every month and do this, they were

         24  being told several hundred dollars, four hundred,

         25  five hundred dollars a month. And so I went and took
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          2  the exam, but it's not an easy exam. And as they

          3  said, it wasn't really directed towards the people

          4  with small buildings. You know, you could do it if

          5  you had 500 units or three units. But I felt very

          6  rewarded. I studied for several weeks. I didn't

          7  think it was easy at all, and I'm imagining, you

          8  know, an older person, person with language

          9  problems, and they're going to think they can go and

         10  take that test and pass it, and the alternatives are

         11  either you do that or you have to pay one of these

         12  contractors to come on a monthly basis. We're not

         13  talking about, you know, a few thousand dollars

         14  every five years. They can hang you up every month,

         15  you know, hitting these big fees. So, it's just an

         16  open season on the homeowner by the plumbing

         17  contractors, in my view.

         18                 MR. RICCI: If I could just add to

         19  that? Our experience has been from the data we

         20  collected, if you call a plumber, her story is

         21  correct, it could be a few hundred dollars. If you

         22  call a fire suppression contractor, they'll sign a

         23  contract with you and it's down to like $30 a month

         24  for some of them. So, they know they're coming on a

         25  regular basis, and then every two and a half years.
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          2                 Our experience has been the fire

          3  suppression contractors are much more reasonable to

          4  deal with than licensed plumbers.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, I think

          6  that's the one remaining issue that we have to deal

          7  with going forward with this bill, and I imagine the

          8  intention is to protect the homeowner in their

          9  pocketbook as much as possible, and I think that the

         10  Committee will look to do so.

         11                 I guess with that, we will layover

         12  both intros 425 and 426, and before I conclude, I

         13  have to acknowledge that we received a letter from

         14  AKF Engineers for the record regarding Intro. 425,

         15  and at this time I ask that their communication be

         16  received in full on the record.

         17                 And that will conclude this hearing.

         18                 (The following written testimony was

         19  read into the record.)

         20

         21

         22  Written Testimony Of:

         23  Frank J. Lorenze, P.E.

         24  Atkinson Koven Feinberg Engineers, LLP

         25
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          2  October 16, 2006

          3

          4

          5  Councilman Erik Martin Dilan

          6  Chairman-Housing and Buildings Committee

          7  New York City Council

          8  City Hall

          9  New York, N.Y. 10007

         10

         11  Re: Intro 425

         12  Letter in Support

         13

         14

         15  Dear Chairman Dilan:

         16

         17                 AKF Engineers, LLP is a 300 person

         18  mechanical, electrical, plumbing and fire protection

         19  consulting engineering firm based in New York City.

         20  Our practice involves many building types and uses

         21  in new and existing structures.

         22                 Intro. 425 continues a process begun

         23  many years ago whereby the most recently issued

         24  National Electrical Code is examined relative to the

         25  NYC Electrical Code to determine what new
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          2  technologies are appropriate for inclusion in the

          3  NYC requirements with amendments to the National

          4  Code as necessary to reflect the unique conditions

          5  of our city.

          6                 This process is guided by the

          7  Electrical Division of the Department of Buildings

          8  via the Electrical Code Revision and Interpretation

          9  Committee whose members include representatives of

         10  all electrical industry segments. The committee has

         11  spent almost 2 years in creating the document that

         12  is now Intro 425. I have had the pleasure of

         13  participating in this active committee since the

         14  electrical code update process began, representing

         15  the American Council of Engineering Companies of New

         16  York.

         17                 It is critical to New York City's

         18  premier position as the financial capital of the

         19  world that new electrical technologies and practices

         20  are quickly and reliably assessed for application in

         21  New York City. With the environmental & conservation

         22  standards recently adopted by the council, it is

         23  most critical in this code cycle since environmental

         24  & conservation standards are based on current

         25  national standards such as the National Electrical
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          2  Code.

          3                 Major construction projects including

          4  Ground Zero, the Javits Expansion, Yankee & Mets

          5  stadiums and others which are now proceeding almost

          6  must have the benefit of the best available code

          7  standards so that the resultant buildings will be

          8  the safest and most technologically advanced as can

          9  be built.

         10                 For those of us who are design

         11  engineers in the NYC electrical industry, Intro 425

         12  is that standard. I strongly encourage your support

         13  of this bill continuing the foresight of your

         14  predecessors on the Council who saw its benefits in

         15  bringing and keeping jobs in NYC.

         16                 Thank you for your consideration.

         17                 Sincerely, Frank J. Lorenz, P.E.,

         18  Partner.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 3:07 p.m.)
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified
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